
 

TOWN OF MASON, NH - PLANNING BOARD 

 

Mason Town Offices & Library 

Mann House, 16 Darling Hill Road 

 ▪ Mason, NH  03048-4615 

 
Planning Board Website – masonnh.us 

 

Phone:  (603) 878-2070 ▪ Fax:  (603) 878-4892 (Selectmen’s Office)                                                                                     Phone:  (603) 417-6570 

 

 

 Page 1 of 1 

 

Mason Planning Board Meeting 
Mason Town Hall - 7 Meetinghouse Hill Road 

Wednesday, February 23, 2022 

7:00 PM 

NOTICE of AGENDA 
 
 

7:00  Call to order by Chairman 

Attendance 

Set date of next meeting 

 Minutes of previous meeting to approve (1/26/22) 

Reading of communications directed to the Board 

 

7:10 Hearings on submitted applications and regulatory changes - No hearings will be started after 

9:30 pm.  (Hearings in progress at 9:30 PM will proceed at the Planning Board’s discretion)  

 

 MAS 22-01: An application by BLC Holdings, LLC, for a lot line adjustment between lot E-

31 and lot E-36-3 to convey a 2.407-acre portion of lot E-31 to lot E-36-3 and a .962-acre 

portion of lot E-36-3 to lot E-31. Lot E-36-3 would increase from 5.256 acres to 7.065 acres 

and lot E-31 would decease to 48.3 acres. Lot E-31 would be subdivided into three lots 

including proposed lot E-31 (28.725 acres), proposed lot E-31-1 (5.272 acres) and proposed 

lot E-31-2 (5.060 acres). A .285-acre “Parcel C” would be conveyed to the Town for Scripps 

Lane and a 7.784-acre conservation “Parcel D” would be conveyed to the Town and 

consolidated with Town-owned lot G-24. Newly created and reconfigured lots E-31, E-31-1, 

E-31-2 and E-36-3 would front on a new cul-de-sac street proposed to be built off of Scripps 

Lane. The lots would be served by on-site septic and individual wells. 

 

Other Business 

Old business 

• Update on warrant article 

• Capital Improvements Program (CIP) 

 

New business 

• Annual review rules of procedure 

 

 

- Adjourn -  
The public is invited to attend the above-described Mason Planning Board Meeting. 

http://masonnh.us/planning-board-general-information/


 

Mason Planning Board 
16 Darling Hill Road, Mason, NH 03048  

 
 

 
Meeting Date: Wednesday, January 26, 2022 
Location: Mason Town Hall 
Minutes: Unapproved 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Dane Rota. 

Roll Call 

Attending Members 
Charlie Moser (Ex-O), Dane Rota, Dotsie Millbrandt (Vice Chair), Mason Twombly (NRPC), Gerry 

Anderson, Katie Boots 

Absent Members 
Cynthia Donovan, John Suiter 

Attending Public 
Approximately 20 members of the public were in attendance.  

Voting Members Tonight 
Charlie Moser, Dane Rota, Dotsie Millbrandt, Gerry Anderson, Katie Boots 

Minutes of Previous Meeting 
The board read the minutes of December 29, 2021. Charlie recommended on page four to add onto the 

end of Wetlands Buffer Ordinance the statement “Public Hearing Closed”. 

Charlie made a motion to approve minutes from December 29. Jerry seconded the motion. Vote four to 

approve. Katie abstained due to absence from December 29 meeting. 

Communication to the Board 
Planning board members read the correspondence from Jon Bryan emailed to Mason Twombly, Nashua 

Regional Planning Commission, dated January 22, 2022 and January 21, 2022.  

Board responded to the email that they did not make any changes at the December 29 meeting. The 

December 29 meeting included a 3rd public comment session due to previous changes made at the 

November meeting.  



Public Hearings 
None 

Old Business 

Wetlands Buffer Amendment 
Charlie made a motion to approve the Wetlands Buffer Amendment.  

Point of Order made by Jon Bryan- He stated that he was present at all three meetings, the public 

meeting was not officially closed. The board did not vote on the ordinance amendment from November- 

RSA 475 requires voting on an amendment.  

Members of the public stated that they believed the Board had not adequately informed the public 

regarding the proposed changes to the Wetlands Article in the Zoning Ordinance. Several public 

attendees asked specific questions regarding how the ordinance would affect their property. Dane 

stated that he and members of the Board would address their concerns, individually, following meeting 

adjournment. He requested the pubic to allow the Board to proceed with the scheduled informal 

consultation listed on the agenda out of courtesy to those affected residents and their land surveyor 

present at the meeting. Dane also stated that the Board would provide information regarding the 

proposed amendment prior to the March 8th election through the local newspaper, the town website, 

and social media. 

The Board stated that once the amendment has been approved, they will submit a warrant article to the 

selectman, who will submit to the town clerk, who will add to the town ballot on March 8 for vote.  

Dotsie seconded the motion to approve the Wetlands Buffer Amendment. All board members approved. 

New Business 

Preliminary consultation: E-31 & E-36-3 Scripps Lane, Randy Haight, Meridian Land 

Services 
The Board conducted an informal consultation with Randy Haight, Meridian Land Services, to alter 2 lots 

(Lot 36-1 and 36-3) and create a subdivision with four lots total. The plan includes a 7.8 acre 

conservation easement which would border the Town’s Rail Trail. The proposal also includes 

construction of a conforming town road over the existing driveway into a cul-de-sac (800 ft. total). 

Hearings on Subdivisions / Site Plans 
None 

Other Business 

Application automation and document storage 
Dane presented an update to the Rules of Procedure. Board members requested to read the document 

and a vote will be held in March to accept or reject. 

CIP Update 
Charlie stated no updates at this time.  



Adjournment 
Charlie made a motion to adjourn at 7:53. Dotsie seconded. Motion carried unanimously. Meeting 

adjourned at 7:53. 



 

Town of Mason Planning Board 

Public Notice of Application Review and Public Hearing 

Notice is hereby given in accordance with RSA 676:4 that the following application(s) will be reviewed 

for completeness by the Planning Board on February 23, 2022, at the Town Hall located at 7 

Meetinghouse Hill Road during a regular meeting:  

7:10 P.M.  MAS 22-01: An application by BLC Holdings, LLC, for a lot line adjustment 

between lot E-31 and lot E-36-3 to convey a 2.407-acre portion of lot E-31 to lot E-36-3 and a 

.962-acre portion of lot E-36-3 to lot E-31. Lot E-36-3 would increase from 5.256 acres to 7.065 

acres and lot E-31 would decease to 48.3 acres. Lot E-31 would be subdivided into three lots 

including proposed lot E-31 (28.725 acres), proposed lot E-31-1 (5.272 acres) and proposed lot E-

31-2 (5.060 acres). A .285-acre “Parcel C” would be conveyed to the Town for Scripps Lane and 

a 7.784-acre conservation “Parcel D” would be conveyed to the Town and consolidated with 

Town-owned lot G-24. Newly created and reconfigured lots E-31, E-31-1, E-31-2 and E-36-3 

would front on a new cul-de-sac street proposed to be built off of Scripps Lane. The lots would be 

served by on-site septic and an individual wells.  

If the Board deems an application as complete, a public hearing may immediately follow. The public 

hearing will be continued to a date certain until an application is approved or disapproved. This serves as 

notice for any continuation of the public hearing to a date certain. The Planning Board meets the last 

Wednesday of the month at 7:00 PM.  

A copy of the application(s) listed above is available for public review at the Selectmen’s Office during 

regular business hours. You may submit comments in person or in writing. Any person with a disability 

who wishes to attend this public meeting and who needs to be provided with reasonable accommodation, 

please contact the Selectmen’s Office one week prior to the meeting so arrangements can be made. 

Issuance of a decision shall be in accordance with RSA 676:3.  

 

PER ORDER OF DANE ROTA, CHAIR  

MASON PLANNING BOARD 



TOWN OF MASON, NH - PLANNING BOARD 

Mason Town Offices & Library 

Mann House, 16 Darling Hill Road 

Mason, NH 03048 

Planning Board Website - (http://www.mason-nh.org) 
 

Phone: (603) 878-2070 ▪ Fax: (603) 878-4892 (Selectmen’s Office)  Phone: (603) 417-6570 

 

CR Staff Report 22-01 Scripps Lane Subdivision Page 1 of 3 

NASHUA REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION  
STAFF REVIEW 

Project Name:  BLC Holdings, LLC Subdivision               Case Number:  22-01 

 Plan (Plat)/Revision Date: November 9, 2021  Tax Map: E & G Lot #: E-31, E-36-3 & G-24
                     

           

MEETING DATE:   

 

Wednesday, February 23, 2022  

APPLICANT(s):   

 

BLC Holdings, LLC 

APPLICATION TYPE:  

 Lot Line Adjustment 

 Subdivision              Site Plan  

 Home Occupation    Sign 

 Excavation               ___________ 

 

APPLICATION STATUS: 

  Accepted:   
65 days expires:   

  Approved:  

  Extension to:  

APPLICANT’S CONSULTANT:   

Meridian Land Services, Inc. 

PO Box 118 

Milford, NH 03055-0118 

REVIEWED BY:   

 

Jay Minkarah 

Mason Planning Board Circuit Rider 

2/7/2022 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 
Lot Requirements for GRAF District: 

• Area – The minimum lot area shall be 4-acres (174,240) sq. ft. per dwelling unit 

• Frontage – A conventional lot shall be 350 ft. on a Class V highway or better  

• Setbacks – Front, Side and Rear Set Back of 35 ft. 

Waivers:  

• Subdivision Regulations Section 5.08.6 A – Grade within 100 feet of an intersection   

• Subdivision Regulations Section 5.08.6 E – Vertical Curves 
 
Fees:  Verified and paid.  
 
Issues: 

• Minimum submission requirements having been met; staff recommends acceptance as a complete 
application. Input on the waiver requests from the Road Agent would be helpful in evaluating the request. 
Input from the Road Agent on the proposed cul-de-sac and condition of the unpaved portion of Scripps Lane 
should be considered. The Planning Board should also receive input from the Conservation Commission on 
potential wetland impacts and input from the Conservation Commission and Board of Selectmen on the 
proposed conveyance of “Parcel D” to become a part of town-owned Lot G-24. A dredge & Fill permit will be 
required for the proposed cul-de-sac street. 
 

 

file://///w2k12apps/share/Projects/COMMUNITY/MAS/MAS2017/Cases/MAS2014/MAS2013/Templates/Planning%20Board%20Website%20-%20(http:/www.mason-nh.org


TOWN OF MASON, NH - PLANNING BOARD 

Mason Town Offices & Library 

Mann House, 16 Darling Hill Road 

Mason, NH 03048 

Planning Board Website - (http://www.mason-nh.org) 
 

Phone: (603) 878-2070 ▪ Fax: (603) 878-4892 (Selectmen’s Office)  Phone: (603) 417-6570 

 

CR Staff Report 22-01 Scripps Lane Subdivision Page 2 of 3 

 

BACKGROUND 

 
Tax Map / Lot:    Existing: E31, E-36-3 and G-24   
    Proposed: E-31-1 & E-31-2 
 
 
Area / Acres, Ft.²:   Existing E-31: 49.7 acres or 2,167,000 Sq. Ft 
 Existing E-36-3: 5.625 acres or 245,000 Sq. Ft 
 Existing G-24: 5.67 acres or 247,000 Sq. Ft.   
 
 Proposed E-31: 28.725 acres or 1,251,245 Sq. Ft 
 Proposed E-31-1: 5.272 or 229,658 Sq. Ft. 
 Proposed E-31-2: 5.060 or 220,397 Sq. Ft.  
 Proposed E-36-3: 7.065 acres or 307,753 Sq. Ft 
 Proposed G-24: 13.45 acres or 586,000 Sq. Ft. 
 
Current Land Use:  Undeveloped Residential & Conservation  
 
Steep Slopes:   none 
 
Road Access / (Closest Intersection): Brookline Road 
  
Zoning District(s): Overlay Districts: GRAF District 
 

 Aquifer /  Wetlands / Floodplain (FEMA Flood Hazard Zone):    Yes /  No 
 
Surface Water Bodies: N/A  
 

ISSUES:   

 Waiver(s)       Conditional Use Permit (CUP)      Special Exception(s)            Variance(s)   

 Easements      Condo Documents                State Permit(s) / ☐ Road Cut       Excavation Permit 

 Road Bond 

 

APPLICATION ACCEPTANCE: 

1. Verify abutter notices received (Match return receipts to abutter list) 
2. Verify all fees have been paid, plats stamped and signed, all checklist items are complete 
3. Accept, continue or deny (staff recommendation: application appears complete) 
4. Consider and determine whether the application is a development of regional impact (staff recommendation: no 

regional impact) 
 

APPLICATION REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 

1. Board open public hearing for approval consideration 
2. Presentation by applicant  
3. Staff review report 
4. Board questions on the application 

file://///w2k12apps/share/Projects/COMMUNITY/MAS/MAS2017/Cases/MAS2014/MAS2013/Templates/Planning%20Board%20Website%20-%20(http:/www.mason-nh.org


TOWN OF MASON, NH - PLANNING BOARD 

Mason Town Offices & Library 

Mann House, 16 Darling Hill Road 

Mason, NH 03048 

Planning Board Website - (http://www.mason-nh.org) 
 

Phone: (603) 878-2070 ▪ Fax: (603) 878-4892 (Selectmen’s Office)  Phone: (603) 417-6570 

 

CR Staff Report 22-01 Scripps Lane Subdivision Page 3 of 3 

5. Abutter comments on approval 
6. Consider any other staff, conservation commission and other issues 
7. Board consideration of and action on requested waivers 
8. Determine any additional fees or other possible conditions 
9. Act on approval, conditions, denial or continue to a date certain (staff recommendation: continue to a date and 

time certain)   
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

  6 Plan copies with professional seals & signatures 

  1 Original Mylar with professional seals & signatures 

  Bond estimate (where applicable) 

  State Permits –  Curb-cut,  Subdivision (Sub Surface/Septic),  Dredge and Fill,  Alteration of Terrain  

  All fees paid, and escrow maintained as required 

  Changes to Plat as detailed in minutes and this report (List) IF ANY:  see issues noted above 

  Others (List):  List any additional conditions identified during the hearing. 

file://///w2k12apps/share/Projects/COMMUNITY/MAS/MAS2017/Cases/MAS2014/MAS2013/Templates/Planning%20Board%20Website%20-%20(http:/www.mason-nh.org




DVB
Typewritten Text
X

DVB
Typewritten Text
4



Town of Mason  

Subdivision Regulations 

 

51 
Town of Mason      Amended February 27, 2019 

APPENDIX B 
Instructions for Subdivision Applicants 

 
1. All hearings are in the order in which completed application form and fees (see 2, 3, 4, and 5 below) are 

received. 
 
2. Deadline for applications:  No application shall be heard at any meeting unless it has been received by the 

Board a minimum of 21 calendar days prior to the meeting.  A schedule is posted at the Town Offices and the 
Town Hall that provides all necessary dates.  Contact the Planning Board’s agent to be placed on the agenda 
for a Planning Board meeting. 

 
3. All fees are shown below.  Fees are accepted in the form of a check or money order made out to the specified 

party (shown in “Check Payable To” column in table below). The applicant will prepay all “Town of Mason 
fees which will be held in escrow by the town. 

 

Fee Name 
Payment 

Point 
Check Payable To 

Fee Amounts 

Amount Due 
Applicant 

Status 

Preapplication 

Consultation 
None N/A None  

Basic Application 

Filing Fee 

With 

Application 
Town of Mason $100  

Per Lot Application 

Filing Fee 

With 

Application 
Town of Mason 

$50 per lot, for total 

number of lots at 

completion of subdivision. 

Waived for lot line 

adjustments. 

 

Abutters/Notification 

Fee 

With 

Application 
Town of Mason 

$6.50 per notification per 

hearing 
 

Newspaper Notice 

Fee 

With 

Application 
Town of Mason 

$150 per notification per 

hearing 
 

Tax Map Update Fee At Approval Town of Mason 
$25 per lot, for total 

number of lots 
 

Registry Filing Fee At Approval 

Hillsborough 

County Register of 

Deeds 

• 8.5 x11 or 11 x 17 = 

$11 

• 17 x 22 = $16 

• 22 x 34 = $26 

 

Land and Community 

Heritage Investment 

(LCHIP) Fee 

At Approval 
Hillsborough 

County Treasurer 
$25  

Administrative Filing 

Fee 
At Approval Town of Mason $25  

Planning 

Consultant(s) Review 

Fee – Escrow 

With 

Application 
Town of Mason 

Lot Line Adjustment $200 

Minor Subdivision $200 

Major Subdivision $500 

**See Item 4 below 

 

TOTAL 

All Fees are subject to change.  Notice of any changes will be posted in the Town Offices and Town 

Hall.  Applicants are responsible for verification with the Mason Planning Board that they have the 

latest revision of the application form and the latest fee structures.  Fees are non-refundable. 

 











DVB
Text Box
9. THE SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE TOWN OF MASON ARE A PART OF THIS PLAT, AND APPROVAL OF THIS PLAT IS CONTINGENT ON COMPLETION OF ALL THE REQUIREMENTS OF SAID SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS, EXCEPTING ONLY ANY VARIANCES OR MODIFICATIONS MADE IN WRITING BY THE BOARD AND ATTACHED HERETO.

TRY
Text Box
10



TRY
Text Box
10



















DRAFT REVISION FOR 2022 

 

MASPB_Rule_Of_Procedure_2019-10-30 
1 

TOWN OF MASON PLANNING BOARD 
RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Adopted December 3, 2008 
Revised May 27, 2009; December 1, 2010; August 26, 2015, November 28, 2018, 

October 30, 2019 

 
AUTHORITY 
 
These rules of procedure are adopted under the authority of New Hampshire 
Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) 676:1. 
 
 
MEMBERS 
 

1. Membership: The Planning Board shall consist of 5 members. The 
Selectmen shall designate one selectman as an ex-officio member with 
power to vote and appoint 4 other regular members who are residents of 
the Town. 

 
2. Terms: Selection, qualification, term, removal of members, and filling of 

vacancies shall conform to RSA 673. 
 
3. Alternate members: Alternate members may serve on the Planning 

Board as authorized by RSA 673:6. Alternate members of the Board shall 
join the regular members in all presentations, public hearings, and 
discussions except that such alternates may not vote on any proposal or 
motion before the Board unless so directed by the Chair. 

 
4. Oath of Office: Each newly elected or appointed (including re-appointed) 

member shall be sworn in and take an oath of office as required by RSA 
42:1. 

 
5. Certification: The Selectmen will sign appointment papers for all new 

members. The Selectmen’s Assistant will then forward the signed 
appointment papers to the Town Clerk. The Town Clerk then can swear in 
the new Planning Board Member. Three copies of the signed appointment 
papers shall be kept: one copy for the Selectmen’s records, one copy for 
the Town Clerk’s records, and one copy for the new member to keep. 
 

6. Participation:  Members must reside in the community and are expected 
to attend each meeting of the board to exercise their duties and 
responsibilities.  Any member unable to attend a meeting shall notify the 
chairman as soon as possible.  Members shall participate in the decision-
making process and vote to approve or disapprove all motions under 
consideration. 
 

 
 



DRAFT REVISION FOR 2022 

 

MASPB_Rule_Of_Procedure_2019-10-30 
2 

OFFICERS AND OTHER BOARD DUTIES 
 

1. Chairman: The Chairman shall preside over all meetings and hearings, 
prepare an annual budget, develop an annual report and perform other 
duties customary to the office. 

 
The Chairman shall be elected annually at the first meeting following the 
Town Meeting by a majority vote of the Board. If requested by a majority of 
those present, voting shall be by written ballot.  Pursuant to RSA 673:9 (II) 
this position shall not be held by an ex-officio member. 

 
2. Vice-Chairman:  The Vice Chairman shall act for the Chairman in his/her 

absence and have the authority to perform the duties prescribed for that 
office.  This position shall not be held by an ex-officio member.  If the Chair 
or Vice Chair are not present and if a quorum is achieved, then a chair pro 
tem will be selected amongst the full members present, not including the 
ex-officio. 
 

3. Secretary pro tem: The Board shall appoint a secretary pro tem from the 
members present at each meeting to keep a full and accurate record of 
the proceedings of the meeting. The record shall contain the names of the 
members present; names of others present, and a summary of items 
discussed and actions taken by the Board.    

 
4. Designated Representative:  The Chairman shall appoint a Designated 

Representative and may appoint other members of the board to fulfill such 
duties as the Chairman may specify.   

 
 

MEETINGS 
 

1. Regular meetings shall be held at least monthly at the Mann House at 16 
Darling Hill Road, Mason, NH, at 7:00 pm on the last Wednesday of each 
month. No new public hearing or business shall commence after 9:30 pm.  
A hearing in progress may proceed or be continued to another meeting at 
the board’s discretion.  The Board may, at its sole discretion, waive this 
provision by majority vote. 

 
2. Special meetings may be called by the Chairman or at the request of 

three members of the Board.  Notice shall be posted in two public places 
and notice shall be given to each member at least 48 hours in advance of 
the time of such meeting. The notice shall specify the purpose of the 
meeting. 

 
3. Nonpublic Sessions shall be held only in accordance with RSA 91-A:3. 
 



DRAFT REVISION FOR 2022 

 

MASPB_Rule_Of_Procedure_2019-10-30 
3 

4. Quorum: A majority of the membership of the Board (3 members) shall 
constitute a quorum, including alternates sitting in place of regular 
members. If any regular Board member is absent from a meeting or 
hearing or disqualifies her/himself from sitting on a particular application, 
the Chairman shall designate one of the alternate members to sit in place 
of the absent or disqualified member. Such alternate shall have all the 
powers and duties of a regular member regarding any matter under 
consideration on which the regular member is unable to act. 

 
5. Disqualification: If any member finds it necessary to be disqualified from 

sitting on a particular case, as provided in RSA 673:14, s/he shall notify 
the Chairman as soon as possible so that an alternate may be requested 
to fill the place. The disqualification shall be announced by either the 
Chairman or the member before the discussion or the public hearing on 
the application begins. The member disqualified shall leave the Board 
table during all deliberations and the public hearing on the matter. 
 
If uncertainty arises as to whether a Board member should disqualify 
her/himself, on the request of that member or the request of another 
member of the Board, the Board shall vote on the question of whether that 
member should be disqualified. Such request and vote shall be made prior 
to or at the commencement of any required public hearing. A vote on a 
question of disqualification shall be advisory and non-binding and may not 
be requested by persons other than board members. 
 

6. Order of Business shall be as follows: 
a. Call to order by Chairman 
b. Roll Call 
c. Minutes of previous meeting 
d. Reading of communications directed to the Board 
e. Public Hearings 
f. Old Business 
g. New Business 
h. Hearings on subdivision/site plans 
i. Other business 
j. Adjournment 

 
7. Motions: A motion, duly seconded, shall be carried by an affirmative vote 

of a majority of the members present. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
APPLICATIONS FOR SUBDIVISION AND SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 



DRAFT REVISION FOR 2022 

 

MASPB_Rule_Of_Procedure_2019-10-30 
4 

1. Applications for hearings before the Board shall be made on forms 
provided by the Board.  No application shall be placed upon any agenda 
for acceptance at a regular meeting of the Board unless the application is 
received by the Planning Board’s Designated Representative or Chairman 
no less than 21 days prior to the meeting date at which it is to be accepted 
and/or discussed.  No application will be received except in proper form as 
set forth in the Subdivision or Site Plan Regulations. 
 
The applicant shall send one paper and one electronic copy of the 
application, fees, and plan to the Town’s designated representative.  The 
applicant shall submit the original application, fees and one digital copy of 
the plan to the Selectmen at the Mason Town Office.  The applicant shall 
bring 3 additional copies of the plans to the hearing. 
 
Each application shall be given a case number that corresponds to the 
year and consecutive application number (example the first case number 
of the year 2008 would be 08-01) and identified using the tax parcel 
numbers of the lots affected by the application. 
 
The Town’s Designated Representative will send an electronic copy of the 
application and plan(s) to the Fire Chief, Road Agent, and Police Chief for 
department review.  The representative will compile the application, 
plan(s), department reviews, and a staff review.  The package of 
information will be provided to the Planning Board, electronically by the 
representative, prior to the meeting date at which it is to be accepted 
and/or discussed.  To ensure compliance with the letter and spirit of the 
Right-to-Know Law, RSA 91-A, the Board shall not exchange 
communication regarding the information package. 
 
All Planning Board files shall be maintained at the Town Offices and/or 
data storage folders. 

 
2. Notice shall be given as required in RSA 676:4,1(d) 10 days before a 

completed application is submitted to the Board. 
 
3. Completed applications shall be accepted by majority vote of the Board 

and shall be scheduled for consideration within 30 days of acceptance. 
 
4. Incomplete applications the board shall reject all applications not 

properly completed. 
 
 
FORMS 
 
All forms prescribed herein, and revisions thereof shall be adopted by resolution 
of the Board and shall become part of these rules of procedure.  Certain forms, 



DRAFT REVISION FOR 2022 

 

MASPB_Rule_Of_Procedure_2019-10-30 
5 

when available, may be downloaded from the Town website and submitted 
electronically. 
 
NOTICE 
 

1. Public notice of the submission of and public hearings on each 
application shall be given in the Monadnock Ledger Transcript or by 
posting at both the Town Offices and the Mann House not less than ten 
(10) calendar days prior to the date fixed for submission and consideration 
of the application. 

 
2. Personal notice shall be made by certified mail to the applicant, all 

abutters and any professional whose seal appears on any plat not less 
than ten (10) calendar days prior to the date fixed for submission of the 
application to the Board. 

 
 
SITE WALKS 
 

If the Board conducts a site walk as part of an application review, notice of the 
site walk shall be posted and minutes of the meeting shall be taken when a 
quorum of the Board is present. The Board will make no decisions on the site 
walk. 

 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
The conduct of public hearings shall be governed by the following rules: 
 

1. The Chairman, or in his/her absence, the Vice-Chairman shall call the 
hearing in session, identify the applicant or agent, briefly state the manner 
in which the hearing shall be conducted, and ask for the Planning 
Consultant’s report as well as other reports as needed from the Town 
Engineer and other consultants. 

 
2. Call upon the applicant or agent to present the proposal.  Following 

the proposal, the Chairman shall review the application with the 
Board for compliance with the Planning Ordinance and applicable 
subdivision regulation(s).  The compliance review shall include 
information from the staff report submitting by the Town’s 
designated representative. 
 

3. Members of the Board may ask questions during the presentation.  
Board members may also ask questions and/or comment on 
application checklist items during the compliance review.  The Board 
will determine if the application has regional impact. Following the 
application review and prior to seeking public comment, the Chair 



DRAFT REVISION FOR 2022 

 

MASPB_Rule_Of_Procedure_2019-10-30 
6 

will conduct a roll call vote to approve or disapprove any waiver(s) 
submitted by the applicant. The Board shall then vote to accept the 
application or reject it (citing all compliance deficiencies). 

 
4. The Chair will then solicit comment and questions from the public 

attending the hearing.  Any party to the matter who desires to ask a 
question of another party must go through the Chairman.   

 
5. Any applicant, any abutter or any person with a direct interest in the matter 

may testify in person or in writing. Other persons may testify as permitted 
by the Board at each hearing. 

 
6. Each person who speaks shall be required to state her/his name and 

address and indicate whether s/he is a party to the matter or an agent or 
counsel to a party to the matter. 

 
7. Those appearing in favor of the proposal shall be allowed to speak. 
 
8. Those in opposition to the proposal shall be allowed to speak. 

 
9. Those neither in favor nor in opposition may speak. 
 
10. Other parties such as representatives of town departments and other town 

boards and commissions who have an interest in the proposal shall be 
allowed to present their comments in person or in writing. 

 
11. The Chairman shall indicate whether the hearing is closed or adjourned 

pending the submission of additional material or information or the 
correction of noted deficiencies. In the case of an adjournment, additional 
notice is not required if the date, time and place of the continuation is 
made known at the adjournment. 

 
 
DECISIONS 
 

1. The Board shall render a written decision within 65 days of the date of 
acceptance of a completed application, subject to extension or waiver as 
provided in RSA 676:4. 

 
2. The Board shall act to approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove the 

application. 
 

3. Notice of decision (NOD) will be made available for public inspection at 
the Mason Town Office and/or Town Website within 5 business days 
after the decision is made, as required in RSA 676:3. If the application is 
disapproved, the Board shall provide the applicant with written reason for 
this disapproval. 



DRAFT REVISION FOR 2022 

 

MASPB_Rule_Of_Procedure_2019-10-30 
7 

 
 
RECORDS 
 

1. The records of the Board shall be made available for public inspection at 
the Mann House/Town Office and/or Town digital storage files as 
required by RSA 676:3,11. 

 
2. Minutes of the meetings including the names of Board members, persons 

appearing before the Board and a brief description of the subject matter 
shall be open to public inspection within 5 business days of the public 
meeting as required in RSA 91-A:2, II. 

 
JOINT MEETINGS AND HEARINGS 
 

1. The Planning Board may hold joint meetings and hearings with other “land 
use boards” including the Zoning Board of adjustment and the Building 
Inspector. Each entity shall have discretion whether to hold such joint 
meeting or hearing (RSA 676:2). 

 
2. Joint business meetings with another local land use board may be held at 

any time when called jointly by the chairmen of the two boards. 
 
3. A joint public hearing must be a formal public hearing when the subject 

matter of the hearing is within the responsibilities of the boards convened. 
 
4. The Planning Board chair shall chair all joint meetings and public hearings 

when the subject matter involves the Planning Board. 
 
5. The rules of procedure for joint meetings and hearings, the subject matter 

of which involves the Planning Board, shall be the same as these rules of 
procedure except that the order of business shall be as follows: 

a. Call to order by Chairman 
b. Introduction of members of both boards by Chairman 
c. Explanation of reason for joint meeting/hearing by Chairman 
d. In the case of a public hearing relative to a requested permit or an 

application for a plat approval, or both, the applicant shall be called 
to present his proposal. 

e. Adjournment 
 
6. Each board involved in a joint public hearing makes its own decision, 

based on its criteria for the particular matter. 
 
 
E-MAIL AND OTHER COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN MEETINGS 
 

1. PURPOSE 



DRAFT REVISION FOR 2022 

 

MASPB_Rule_Of_Procedure_2019-10-30 
8 

   

  A. To ensure compliance with the letter and spirit of the Right-to-Know Law, 

RSA 91-A, and with the Due Process rights of parties before the 

Board; 

 

 B. To clarify Board members’ ability, between meetings, to research issues 

and prepare motions or other potential Board actions, thus 

promoting efficient use of meeting time, but only to the extent 

allowed by law; and, 

 

C. To clarify the role of electronic media such as E-mail in achieving these 

goals. 

 

2. DEFINITIONS   

 

A. Communication means a transfer of information, objective or 

subjective, from one person to another.  It includes face-to-face or 

phone conversations, letters, memos, E-mails, web sites, or any 

other medium, regardless of the location or ownership of any 

device or equipment used. 

   

 B. Distribution is a one-way communication between meetings involving 

more than one Board member where no between-meeting 

response (except acknowledgment of receipt) occurs or is 

expected. 

   

 C. Exchange is a communication between meetings, or series of 

communications, involving more than one Board member which 

includes a between-meeting response, or expectation of a 

response. 

 

 D. Ex Parte Communication is communication, other than at a legally-

noticed meeting, between a Board member and a person with an 

interest in, or affected by, a pending or future case. 

 

3. ACTIVITIES BETWEEN MEETINGS OF INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS.  

Individual Board members may, between meetings, prepare drafts of 

motions or other potential Board actions.  They may also research or 

investigate general or specific factual issues.  However, if the research 

pertains to a case, the member shall, at the public hearing, report all 

findings to the Board, and parties to the case shall be given a meaningful 

opportunity to respond. 

 

4. DISTRIBUTIONS.  A Distribution may be made to any number of Board 

members, so long as it does not become an Exchange.  Whenever a 



DRAFT REVISION FOR 2022 

 

MASPB_Rule_Of_Procedure_2019-10-30 
9 

member makes a Distribution concerning a pending or future case and it 

involves a quorum of the Board (counting all senders and recipients): 

 

 A. A copy shall be forwarded to the Board of Selectmen’s Administrative 

Assistant who shall place a hard copy of such communication in the 

Planning Board electronic communications file. 

    

 B. The member making the Distribution shall report on it, and its contents, at 

the next public hearing on the case unless the information is 

exempt from disclosure under RSA 91-A; and, 

  

 C. Parties to the case shall be given a meaningful opportunity to respond to 

the information in the Distribution. 

 

5. EXCHANGES.  Exchanges involving a quorum or more of the Board or of 

any Planning Board Committee are prohibited.  Such Exchanges shall be 

considered deliberations and shall occur only at meetings noticed in 

accordance with RSA 91-A.  An Exchange pertaining to any activity 

allowed under Subsection 7.3 is permitted if the number of Board or 

Committee members involved is less than a quorum; however: 

 

 A. Each member involved shall be responsible for preventing the number of 

members involved from reaching a quorum; 

 

 B. Information discussed in, or generated by, an Exchange between 

members shall not be subject to further Distribution; and 

   

 C. No Exchange shall include any vote or straw vote, or any Ex Parte 

Communication. 

 

6. EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS. Board members shall not initiate Ex 

Parte Communications. If an Ex Parte Communication is initiated by 

another person, the Board member contacted shall: 

 

 A. Refrain from discussing the substance or merits of a case; 

 

 B. Inform the person, if necessary, that such a discussion could lead to 

disqualification; 

 

 C. Refer the person to the Designated Representative (Planning Consultant) 

or to a Board meeting, as appropriate; and 

 

 D. Report on the conversation to the Board at a public meeting. 

   



DRAFT REVISION FOR 2022 

 

MASPB_Rule_Of_Procedure_2019-10-30 
10 

7. SCHEDULING AND AGENDA.  Nothing in this policy prevents any 

Distributions, Exchanges or Ex Parte Communications which pertain 

solely to: 

 

 A. Scheduling of meetings or hearings; 

  

 B. The determination or ordering of agenda items or topics to be taken up at 

meetings or hearings; or 

  

 C. General procedural requirements pertaining to such scheduling and 

agenda matters. 

 
 
 
AMENDMENTS 

  
1. These rules of procedure may be amended by a majority vote of the 

members of the Board provided that such amendment is read at two 
successive meetings immediately preceding the meeting at which the vote 
is to be taken. The amended procedures shall be filed with the Town Clerk 
and Selectmen’s Office 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Superseding all previously adopted Rules of Procedure, these Rules of 
Procedure were adopted by majority vote at a regular meeting of the 
Planning Board held on: 
 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Attest: ________________________________________________ 
   Planning Board Chairman  date 


	01-MAS PB Agenda 2022-2-23
	02-26Jan2022 PB Minutes
	03-2-23-22  Notice of Application and Hearing
	04-CR Staff Report 22-01 Scripps Lane Subdivision
	05-06956.08_Waiver Request
	06-Subdivision Application
	07-06956.08 Plan Set 220202
	08_MAS_2015_PB_Rules Of Procedure_Amended 01-20-2022



